Public Document Pack

(D) grent

Alcohol and Entertainment
Licensing Sub-Committee

Tuesday 12 April 2022 at 10.00 am

This will be held as an online virtual Meeting
Details on how to access the link in order to view the meeting will be
made available online via the following link: HERE

Membership:

Members Substitute Members

Councillors: Councillors:

Long (Vice-Chair) Ahmed, Denselow, Chohan, Hector, Grahl, McLeish,
Hylton Shahzad

Maurice

For further information contact: Devbai Bhanji, Governance Assistant
Tel: 020 8937 6841; Email: devbai.bhanji@brent.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the
minutes of this meeting have been published visit:
www.brent.gov.uk/committees

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting as an
online virtual meeting. The link to view the meeting will be made

available via the following link: HERE

(vrecydle

for Brent



https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/
https://www.brent.gov.uk/your-council/democracy-in-brent/local-democracy/live-streaming/

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest:

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, they
must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent and
must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must declare its
existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent.

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public interest and
either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after disclosing the
interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the
item, except that they may first make representations, answer questions or give evidence relating
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes.

*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:

@) Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit gain.

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in carrying
out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the Councillors or
their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the council.

(d) Land - Any benéeficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer.

)] Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the
Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest.

(9) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of business or
land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued
share capital.

**Personal Interests:

The business relates to or affects:

(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, and:

To which you are appointed by the council;

which exercises functions of a public nature;

which is directed is to charitable purposes;

whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a

political party of trade union).

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least £50 as
a member in the municipal year;

or
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or
financial position of:
e You yourself;
e a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal interest.



Agenda

Introductions, if appropriate.

ltem Page

1  Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members
2  Declarations of Interests

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they relate.

3  Application for by Esther Chan - Licensing Enforcement Officer for 1- 146
the premises known as Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High
Road, NW6 6HT, pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act
2003

Date of the next meeting:

Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

LICENSING ACT 2003

Application for the Review a Premises Licence

Name of Applicant: Esther Chan - Licensing Enforcement Officer

Name & Address of Premises: | Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT

Applicants Agent: Robert Sutherland and Joshua Simons

Application

The application is for the review of a premises licence held by Mr Hashem Beik
Mohammadi. The premises are known as Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High
Road, NW6 6HT.

Grounds for Review

The grounds for review are Prevention of Crime & Disorder and Public Safety and the
Prevention of Public Nuisance.

The premises has attracted a catalogue of nuisance complaints.

The licensee has failed to comply with the conditions and hours attached to the premises
licence.

The Licensing Authority have grounds to believe that unauthorised areas have been used
to provide licensable activities.

Customers have been witnessed smoking in a substantially enclosed area in breach of the
smoke-free legislation.
3. Relevant Representations

Representations have been received from Licensing Enforcement Officers, the Police,
Nuisance Control Team and members of the public.

A letter of support has also been received from a member of the public.

4. Background

The hearing was previously adjourned to provide the agent/licensee time to consider
documents that were provided late.

These premises are currently licensed for regulated entertainment and the sale of alcohol
from 8am to midnight Monday to Sunday, late night refreshment and to remain open until

lam Monday to Sunday.

The Designated Premises Supervisor is Mr Hashem Beik Mohammadi.

Page 1



Associated Papers

Review Application
Police Representation
Nuisance Control Rep
Resident Reps

Letter of Support

OS Map

Tmoow>

Page 2



€D Brent

APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A
PREMISES LICENCE OR CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers
are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

linsert name of applicant] apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51/ apply for the
review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable).

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Name and postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Shanzelize
11 Kilburn Bridge
Kilburn High Road

Post Town: London Post Code (if known) NW6 6HT

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Mr Hashem Beik Mohammadi

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

679950

1 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11
Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022

Page 3



Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
Please tick v’ Yes
1) An individual, body or business which is not a responsible authority ]
(Please read guidance note 1 and complete (A) or (B) below)
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) 4
3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) below) ]

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick

Mr |:| Mrs |:| Miss D Ms |:| Other title D

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v Yes
| am 18 years old or over D

Current postal
address

if different from
premises address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

2 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11
Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022

Page 4



(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Esther Chan
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Telephone number (if any) 0208 937 5303

E-mail address (optional) esther.chan@brent.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder 4
2) public safety 4
3) the prevention of public nuisance v
4) the protection of children from harm ]

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT is located on a busy high street,
close to residential dwellings. On 14th November 2018, Mr Hashem Beik Mohammadi
submitted an application to transfer the premise licence into his name. On the 16th November
he submitted the application form to become the Designated Premise Supervisor (DPS) of the
premises.

The Premise Licence permits the following licensable activities and hours:
Requlated Entertainment

Monday to Sunday — 08:00hrs to 00:00hrs

Late Night Refreshments

Monday to Sunday - 23:00hrs — 01:00hrs

Sale or Supply of Alcohol (For consumption on & off the premises)
Monday to Sunday — 08:00hrs — 00:00hrs

Opening Hours

Monday to Sunday — 08:00 — 01:00hrs

The premises has attracted a catalogue of nuisance complaints.

The licensee has failed to comply with the conditions and hours attached to the premises
licence.

The Licensing Authority have grounds to believe that unauthorised areas have been used to
provide licensable activities.

| have witnessed customers smoking in a substantially enclosed area in breach of the smoke-
free legislation.

3 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11
Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022

Page 5



4 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11
Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022

Page 6



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read guidance
note 3)

On 15" January 2019, the Nuisance Control Team notified the Licensing Authority the service
of a Section 80 Noise Abatement Notice under the provisions of the Environmental Health
Department Act 1990. The Noise Abatement Notice was served on 13" January 2019
following the witnessing of a Statutory Noise Nuisance from the playing of loud music
emanating from the premises at such a level as to constitute a statutory nuisance within the
meaning of the law (Appendix 1).

On 31st January 2019, the Council received an online enquiry from a resident stating “I’'m
complaining about a bar that has suddenly started an outdoor garden disco 4 nights a
week close to our property which is causing a disturbance to the residents. | wondered
if they had a licence to be able to do that ?”

On Tuesday 19" February 2019, | conducted a joint visit to the premises with [N
Public Safety Officer to inspect the premise and discuss noise complaints related to music
emanating from the rear of the premises (Appendix 2).

During my visit, | went through the conditions embedded on the premise licence with Mr
Mohammadi. It became apparent that Mr Mohammadi failed to comply with numerous
conditions attached to the premise licence.

Furthermore, the licensee made changes to the premises including modifying the internal
layout and by making use of the outside space by converting the rear garden into a fully
enclosed seating area (Appendix 3 -5).

These changes mean that the premises is now inconsistent with the plan that was originally
submitted with the licence application back in 2011. Technically, this makes the license invalid
as licensable activities are being supplied in an unlicensed area.

Mr Mohammadi confirmed Shisha smoking and licensable activities are provided in rear seating
area, which he said could seat around 60 persons. It was noted that large speakers and TV
screens were placed around the rear seating area (Appendix 6).

Officer |l found that the rear structure posed a serious risk. Obstruction from boxes and a
charcoal burner positioned in an unsafe manner caused health and safety concerns, which
were expressed to Mr Mohammadi (Appendix 7-9).

Mr Mohammadi was warned that he must not provide any licensable activities until he submits
a variation application to amend the existing plan. He was advised to obtain Building
Control/Planning approval before doing this. This is because it would be futile them applying to
licence an area, which subsequently is found to breach the planning rules. If changes were
required to comply with planning, then this may make their license outdated again.

A letter of warning dated 22" February 2019 was served to Mr Mohammadi confirming the
matters discussed at my visit (Appendix 10).

On Saturday 2" March 2019, | was on night duty with another Licensing Inspector. At
approximately 23:20hrs, we drove into Mallard Close which is located behind the premises and
could hear faint Arabic music emanating from the rear of the premises.

Subsequently, | entered the premises at 23:30hrs and walked into the rear seating area (fully
enclosed), where most of the customers were sitting, smoking shisha and having refreshments.

5 Review Application - Shanzelize,
Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022

Page 7



Mr Mohammadi was seating with his customers and came to greet me.

The rear seating area was fully packed with customers and due to the high level of smoke
emissions from the shisha pipes and lack of space to manoeuvre around the premises, | could
not conclude my checks. Mr Mohammadi was reminded that he must not use the rear seating
area to provide licensable activities, which included regulated entertainment.

Mr Mohammadi claimed he had not received my warning letter dated the 22" February 2019
and confirmed his email address.

On 4% March 2019, | sent Mr Mohammadi an email confirming my visit on 2" March 2019,
attached with my warning letter dated 22" February 2019 (Appendix 11).

On 10™ April 2019, | sent Mr Mohammadi two separate letters on different subject matters. The
first letter requested him to apply for a street trading licence for the tables and chairs outside
the premises. (Appendix 12).

The second letter was to notify him that the Licensing Authority are aware that Iranian and
Arabic music events were being advertised for every Friday and Saturday night. He was
reminded not use unauthorised areas to provide licensable activities. (Appendix 13).

On Sunday 12" May 2019, at approximately 00:26hrs, | visited the premises and again found
most of the customers seated at the rear, smoking shisha in a fully enclosed structure and
found two fresh pints of beer served in open glasses to customers. Condition 6 embedded on
the premises licence stipulates that “Customers shall not be permitted to take open glass
containers outside the premises as defined on the plan submitted to and approved by
the Licensing Authority”. Other breaches were identified and explained to Mr Mohammadi.

On 22" May 2019, | sent a letter to Mr Mohammadi confirming my visit on 12t May 2019 and
invited him to attend Brent Civic Centre on Monday 10™ June 2019 for a formal interview, which
he accepted (Appendix 14).

On Monday 10" June 2019, Mr Mohammadi attended Brent Civic Centre with his friend who
acted as his interpreter. However, he was required to notify me in advance that he wished to
appoint an independent interpreter and as such, the PACE interview was void.

PC I \ho accompanied me to the interview and | decided to proceed with the
interview in the form of a meeting.

During the meeting, Mr Mohammadi admitted that he had failed to comply with the licensing
conditions and thus, uphold the licensing objectives.

He said he has invested a lot of money in the business and required support from the Council.

On the grounds that Mr Mohammadi made an effort to attend the meeting and admitted the
non-compliances, a letter of warning was issued on 14" June 2019 (Appendix 15).

On 11%" June 2019, Mr Mohammadi applied for a street trading licence to have tables and
chairs outside the premises. The application was granted.

On 28" February 2020, the Licensing Authority were alerted of noise complaint instigated by a
local resident. The nature of complaint relates to allegation of breach of opening hours and loud
music causing disturbance (Appendix 16).

Following the complaint, on Saturday 14" March 2020 at 21:05hrs, | conducted a joint visit with
Brent Licensing Police, Sergeant |l I 2"d PC I o the premises.

6 Review Application - Shanzelize,
Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022

Page 8



We sat with Mr Mohammadi in the main restaurant seating area to explain our concerns with
ongoing noise complaints and the consequences if he continues to undermine the licensing
objectives. | went through the licensing conditions and took notes of Mr Mohammadi’s
comments, which was confirmed to him in a letter dated 19" March 2020 (Appendix 17).

On 5™ November 2020, PC |l from Brent Police Licensing Unit informed the Licensing
Authority of a criminal intelligence report concerning an incident that occurred on 4™ November
2020 whereby Police Officers attended the premise, when Covid restrictions applied.

On 4™ November 2020 at 20:14hrs, a member of the public visited the premise for Shisha and
contacted the Police stating that there were a hundred people within the premise and there
were no social distancing measures in place.

Police Officers acted on the information and conducted a visit at the location. Police Officers
initially went to the rear of the location. There was very loud music present, with people heard
singing. The police officers then entered from the main entrance, and there were limited signs
encouraging masks to be worn, and no hand sanitiser. The staff were not wearing any PPE
such as masks or gloves. Upon entering the location, officers had walked directly to the rear of
the location, where the shisha area is located. Upon entering this place, it became evident that
there was no measures in place in regards to COVID. There were no social distancing
measures in place, and the customers were sat very close to each other. There is a bench that
goes around the edge of the shisha area, that was filled with customers. The tables in the
middle were full, and people sat very close together.

The manager at the time accepted responsibility of the reason why police had attended, and
accepted that there were a large amount of people present.

They had agreed to evacuate the location, and even when the customers were queuing, there
was no social distancing in place.

Police were present while the staff made everyone leave, and this took over thirty minutes to do
so (Appendix 18).

From the 4" July 2020, Licensed businesses that remain subject to closure include
Night Clubs.

Also subject to closure are “Dance halls, discotheques and any other venue which...
opens at night... has a dance floor or other space for dancing by members of the public,
and provides music, whether live or recorded, for dancing”.

On 1%t April 2021, | sent a warning letter to Mr Mohammadi to advise him that a new premise
licence was required as it has been noted that 12 Kilburn Bridge formally known as ‘La Dolce
Vita’ was replaced with a new signage displayed across 11 -12 Kilburn Bridge with the name
Shanzelize,. This led me to assume he had merged both 11-12 Kilburn Bridge into one entity. |
was unable to visit the premises to verify the layout as it was closed during the day (Appendix
19).

On 13t April 2021, | visited the 12 Kilburn Bridge to ascertain the layout of the premises. Mr
B o helps Mr Mohammadi confirmed the two premises will remain as separate
businesses for the time being.

On 14" April 2021 | sent Mr Mohammadi an email to confirm my discussion with Mr |
during my visit on 13" April 2021. Application forms were sent via email requesting Mr
Mohammadi to transfer the premise licence, vary the DPS and apply for pavement licences.
(Appendix 20).

7 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11
Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022

Page 9



On 271 April 2021, Mr Mohammadi submitted an application to apply for a pavement licence.

On 12™ July 2021, | received an email from PC |l of an incident that occurred at the
premises on 4" July 2021. Between the times of 01:45hrs to 01:49hrs, a call was received from
a person outside the venue who stated that his friend was inside and security were not letting
anyone else leave the premise. Caller mentioned that security had batons.

On Thursday 15" July 2021, | visited the premises as | had reason to believe the basement
was being used for licensable activities. The front signage clearly states ‘restaurant, shisha,
garden, dancefloor’ (Appendix 21).

The premise was open at the time of my visit in the afternoon and there were a few males
sitting in the rear seating area watching a sporting programme on TV.

| asked Mr Mohammadi if he was using any other areas to provide licensable activities to which
he answered ‘no’.

On entering the rear seating area, | noticed a large piece of decorated material covering a door,
which lead to the basement room (Appendix 22).

| contacted the Neighbourhood Patrol Officers to assist me with the visit. Whilst | was waiting
for their arrival, | continued to look around the premises and entered the rear store room, where
the shisha pipes and ingredients were kept. | noticed a male smoking a cigarette in the room,
which was fully enclosed.

As soon as he acknowledged my presence, he threw the cigarette butt in the bin, smirked at
me and walked off. | immediately notified the manager known as [jjjjijwho stood behind me.
Il dismissed me and said ‘what do you expect me to do if | didn’t see him smoking’.

| told Mr Mohammadi, who was sitting in the main restaurant area about the incident. Whilst Mr
Mohammadi was apologising for the male’s actionjjjjjij intercepted our conversations
continuously in a defensive manner. | told Mr Mohammadi that | refuse to speak with Jjjij due
to his uncourteous manner. Mr Mohammadi then told me he had to move out of his property as
he encountering financial difficulties and could not afford to pay bills. He told me that the
manager who was in charge of his business affairs took his laptop and left the business without
giving him the password to his accounts.

Two Neighbourhoods Patrol Officers arrived and | was lead to the basement (Appendix 23). As
| walked down the staircase, | noticed the floor was slightly flooded with water. The main floor
was open with chairs placed against the wall (Appendix 24) There were large speakers
displayed on the rear stage, which suggest that area is utilised for the provision of regulated
entertainment. Mr Mohammadi said the room is used for ‘private parties’ (Appendix 25).

It had been noted that Mr Mohammadi had taken over the adjoining premise 12 Kilburn Bridge,
Kilburn High Road, London, NW6 6HT but failed to transfer the premise licence and vary the
DPS. He was instructed to submit the relevant application forms should he wish to provide
licensable activities.

On 16™ July 2021, Brent CCTV Control Room notified us that on Saturday 3rd into Sunday 4th
July 2021, a few reports went onto the Police CAD System in reference to people being
prevented from leaving as the shutter at the front of the premises was down. The staff in the
premise would raise the shutter when a number of people are ready to leave. There were
further reports of approximately over 100 people in the rear beer garden. CAD details
suggested the premise was undertaking illegal lock-ins to provide shisha and licensable
activities.

8 Review Application - Shanzelize,

Page 10

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022



This information was shared with various internal and external authorities in conjunction with
my findings from my visit on 15" July 2021.

This was followed up by email | sent to Mr Mohammadi requesting him to provide CCTV for
Saturday 3rd July 2021 from midnight to Sunday 4th July 2021 05:00hrs covering the front of
the premise, main restaurant, rear and basement area to verify the allegations (Appendix 26).
Another separate email was sent advising Mr Mohammadi to submit the relevant application
forms to transfer the premise licence and vary the DPS at 12 Kilburn Bridge.

On 16" July 2021, | rang Mr Mohammadi to remind him to provide the requested CCTV footage
as per my email on 16™ July 2021. He said, he will resolve the matter by Monday 19" July
2021.

On 16" July 2021, the Licensing Authority received a member’s enquiry related to a resident
complaining about noise disturbance (Appendix 27).

On 215 July 2021, the Licensing Authority received a correspondence signed by Mr R
I stating that Mr Mohammadi has authorised him to communicate with us regarding his
licensable activities (Appendix 28).

Upon notification of Mr il involvement with the business, he contacted me on the
telephone to discuss matters related to the premises. | told Mr ] ' requested CCTV
footage as part of an investigation, which | was still awaiting. Mr Jjjjjiij told me that the
requested CCTV footage was unavailable.

After my telephone conversation with Mr il ! issued a letter requesting an explanation as
to why Mr Mohammadi failed to provide CCTV as part of the condition on the licence and
reiterated the fact he cannot use the rear extended area and basement to supply licensable
activities (Appendix 29).

On 23 July 2021, Ml sent an email confirming that the cameras were not working. In
reply to his email, | asked him when the new cameras would be installed and if this covered the
basement. (Appendix 30).

On 26™ July 2021, | visited Brent CCTV Control Room to view recordings near the premises. |
checked various dates and times and found customers entering the premises after midnight
and customers leaving the premises after 1:00hrs.

Please see below summary of events captured on Brent CCTV camera facing Kilburn High
Road.

Saturday 26" June 2021 — Footage extracted from 00:15hrs to 00:45hrs:

00:17hrs 2 females enter premises.

00:24hrs 2 males enter premises.

00:38hrs 4 individuals enter premises.

00:39hrs to 00:41hrs 5 males who were standing outside

Ladbrokes walk to the premises with
other individuals standing outside. They
gradually enter premises.
00:41hrs 4 females enter premises.

Sunday 4" July 2021 - Footage extracted from 04:00 to 04:45hrs:

| 04:00hrs — 04:01hrs | 3 males and 3 females outside premise

9 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 11

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022



and then re-enter premises.
04:11 hrs 2 males leave the premises

04:17hrs Approximately over 70 customers leave
the premise congregating on the public
highway. No sign of SIA controlling the
crowd.

04:40hrs — 04:45hrs A few individual remain outside the
premise mingling.

Saturday 10t July 2021 — Footage extracted from 00:15hrs — 00:45hrs:

00:18hrs Numerous individuals enter premises.

00:20hrs Male seen crossing at the traffic lights
enter premises.

00:21hrs 2 males seen crossing at the traffic
lights enter premises.

00:35hrs 4 females enter premises.

00:41hrs More individuals enter the premises

Sunday 11t July 2021 — Footage extracted from 04:00hrs — 04:45hrs:
e Large crowd, approximately over 70 people disperse from premises.
e No sign of SIA controlling crowd congregating on the public highway.
To view watch the footages, please refer to (Appendix 31).

On 22" July 2021, The Community Safety informed The Licensing Authority that a resident
reported the following:

“Shanzelize Restaurant NW6 6HT has amplified music playing in their outdoor smoking
area every night until 11pm or 12am. This is illegal. They have been doing it for years
and your noise team informed me 3 years ago that it is the most complained about
address in Brent. How are they permitted to continue trading when they flout the law
every single day?”

On 27" July 2021, Mr il sent me an email stating that he been advised that sixteen
cameras would be installed in the next couple of days, however they are no cameras in the
basement as Mr Mohammadi had no plans to use the room until authorisation is in place
(Appendix 32). Invoice of the new camera installation was attached with the email (Appendix
33).

On 2" August 2021, the Licensing Authority received the application forms to transfer the
premise licence and vary the DPS to Mr Mohammadi at 12 Kilburn Bridge, the adjoining
premises to 11 Kilburn Bridge.

On 11% August 2021, | came across a video uploaded by a member of the public on YouTube
on 5" March 2020. The video displayed Shanzelize-Kilburn, with a musician playing the
keyboard and a live singer singing Arabic tunes, which appeared to be in the basement, fully
enclosed. Patrons are seen dancing and singing along with the live singer. At 2.13 minutes into
the video clip, a female with blonde hair sitting at front is seen inhaling from what | believe to be
a shisha pipe (Appendix 34).

| looked online and found out that during this period, events including regulated entertainment
10 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 12

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022



were advertised on social media for Wednesday 4" March 2020 and Friday 6" March 2020
(Appendix 35).

On 23rd August 2021, PC | from Brent Licensing Unit informed me via email of
recent complaints about lock-ins at Shanzelize, attached with a flyer that clearly supports the
notion of them repeating the breach of licensable activities.

On 17th September 2021, the London Fire Brigade sent a copy of a Notification of Fire Safety
Deficiencies related to 11A to 12A Kilburn Bridge dated 10th September 2021. (Appendix 36).

On 22" September 2021, | sent an email to Mr Mohammadi requesting CCTV footage for the
12t September 2021 and informed him that | intend visit the premise with the Public Safety
Officer.

On 27" September 2021, | contacted Mr Mohammadi via telephone followed by an email to
reschedule our appointment to 8" September 2021. In the meantime, he was told to save the
CCTV footage of 12 September 2021 on an UBS stick for collection.

On 5™ October 2021, | visited Brent CCTV Control Room to view recordings near the premises
on 12" September 2021 from various timings split into two clips, see my findings below:

02:22hrs 2 males enter premises

02:26hrs 1 male leaving premises

02:38hrs 1 male enter premises

02:44hrs 2 males enter premises

02:49hrs to 3:15hrs Numerous groups of people enter premises.

04:21hrs — 05:00hrs People leaving the premise in spells, loitering on the public
highway, no sign of SIA staff managing the crowd.

The footage indicates customers were permitted entry after the no-entry time of midnight
contrary to Condition 15, which stipulates “No entry or re-entry shall be permitted after 24:00
hours”. In addition numerous customers were leaving the premises from 04:21hrs, the premise
should be closed to the public by 1am.

To view watch the footages, please refer to (Appendix 37).

On 8™ October 2021, | visited the premises with |l Public Safety Officer in the
presence of Mr il and Mr Mohammadi. We entered the basement and found the room
decorated with party accessories such as a ‘Congratulations’ banner, pompoms and garlands
mounted on the wall. Confetti were scattered on the floor and the large speakers were still
located on the stage, which were supposed to be removed (Appendix 38-39).

Officer il made observations around the whole premises. We sat with Mr Mohammadi to
express licensing, health and safety concerns. | asked him if the premise was opened after the
permitted hours and if he had an event on 12" September 2021, to which he replied “no”. |
reminded Mr Mohammadi to provide me with the CCTV for that day. He rang the ‘engineer’ on
his mobile phone a couple of times to no avail. | told him, this was unacceptable since | gave
him sufficient time to download the footage onto an USB stick.

Mr Mohammadi said the business was suffering. He claimed no one is purchasing alcohol
despite he had a full bar of alcohol. (Appendix 40) and he has stopped customers smoking
shisha in the rear seating area. | suggested to Mr Mohammadi that he should consider
removing himself as the DPS as he presented a lack of licensing knowledge and mentioned his
English is not good, thus he required helped from Mr |- Mr Mohammadi reacted to my

11 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 13

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022



suggestion in an abrupt manner.

On Friday 22" October 2021, | conducted routine evening visits with Licensing Police,
Sergeant |l PC I 2 PC - At 20:35hrs, we entered Mallard
Close to check if the rear door was accessible and if loud music was emanating from the
premises. The rear door was closed and there was no loud music emanating from the
premises.

We then entered the premises via the front entrance. The main restaurant seating was empty.
The bar was fully exposed with alcohol. There were three males sitting on the big couch in rear
seating area, facing the main restaurant. They appeared to have some involvement in the
business. At soon as they saw our presence, they were seen making calls. Customers were
seen in rear seating area, smoking shisha.

We went to the basement and loud Arabic music was audible. Although there were no
customers at the time of our visit, the set-up indicated that the basement was intended for the
use of providing regulated entertainment. Chairs and tables were set up neatly with fresh
balloons fixed on the wall. Disco lights were flashing and the stage was prepared with speakers
and sound deck.

Throughout our duration in the premises, no member of staff engaged with us aside from a
male security staff who informed that he had came to the premises to work on the night and
needed confirmation. We were told that the owner was at the gym. We left the venue to
continue with our duties.

On 27™ October 2021, | issued a letter to Mr Mohammadi informing him of my visit with the
Licensing Police on 22" October 2021 and we had reasons to believe that he has been using
unauthorised areas to provide licensable activities. (Appendix 41).

On 11" November 2021, we were informed by Camden Council Noise Service who received a
call out to the premises on the evening of 6" November 2021. Premises was instructed to close
front doors to prevent noise outbreak. Premises complied.

On 17th November 2021, Mr ] sent an email to me to confirm he is no longer in
discussions with Mr Mohammadi regarding the transfer of the premise licence to himself. Mr
Mohammadi will look for a suitable individual to transfer the premise licence (Appendix 42).

On 19" November 2021, Camden Council informed us that their Noise and Pollution officers
visited Shanzelize on 15th November 2021, following a report of entertainment noise causing a
disturbance to nearby residents.

When visiting, officers witnessed loud amplified music and a microphone being used at the
premises, which was clearly audible from the opposite side of the road, and likely intrusive
enough to be considered a Statutory Noise Nuisance to the residential property nearby. With
the doors and windows of the establishment open, the music and amplified voices drowned out
the sound of passing traffic.

Noise was still audible at an unreasonable level when the doors and windows were closed,
worsened when patrons entered and exited the premises. It wasn’t until the owner, with whom
officers spoke, eventually (reluctantly) reduced the volume as well, that the noise was of a
more acceptable level.

There was also an issue of clearly intoxicated customers shouting abuse at officers with limited
intervention from the premises’ owner.

12 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 14

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022



On 15" December 2021, the Principal Nuisance Control Officer copied The Licensing Authority
in their response to Camden Council (Appendix 43).

On 4™ January 2022, Brent Council's Community Safety Team reported anti-social behaviour at
the premises instigated by a member of the public stating that the premise has re-commenced
playing loud amplified music in their outdoor smoking area regularly.

On 12t January 2022, Brent Council's Community Safety Team notified the Licensing Authority
of a complaint related to loud amplified music played at business premises.

It is evident that the premises is operating as a nightclub and shisha lounge. Regulated
entertainment such as recorded music, live music and performance of dance (belly dancing) is
clearly advertised in form of events on the business website and social media platform
https://www.shanzelize.uk/ (Appendix 44).

In my opinion, the licensed area (main restaurant) is mainly used as thoroughfare to gain
access to the rear seating area. The evidence captured indicates that Mr Mohammadi has
ignored the Council’s warning by continuing to use unauthorised areas to provide licensable
activities.

From a Crime and Disorder perspective, not having CCTV footage available for officers to view
and using unauthorised areas to provide licensable activities and breaching the authorised
hours of the premise licence are serious concerns.

From a public nuisance point of view, the fact that there have been several complaints from
residents in regards to noise from the premises and the fact that the licensee/DPS has failed to
be truthful by permitting patrons to use unauthorised areas for licensable activities clearly
shows that Mr Mohammadi is an irresponsible business operator.

By viewing Brent CCTV footages and my engagement with Mr Mohammadi, there has been a
lack of responsible management. The lack of responsible management was evidenced by the
conduct of the staff members, licensee/DPS, the lack of control demonstrated by customers
spilling into the public highway furthermore to noise disturbance to local residents. The hostile
and irresponsible attitudes perpetuated by staff and Mr Mohammadi is unacceptable.

It considered that suitable training and supervision is not currently in place, or effective, to
prevent incidents of public nuisance.

The Council have exhausted all avenues to help the licensee promote the licensable
objectives. Various responsible authorities have visited the premises to advise and warn the
licensee to take steps to demonstrate he is a responsible trader. Mr Mohammadi has failed to
address the matters seriously by breaching the licensing conditions and terminal hours.

The evidence presented in this review application points out direct contravention of the premise
licence requirements, and is deemed to result in the creation of public nuisance, impact of
public safety and the potential increase in crime and disorder that affects the wider community
including customers and staff. This is contrary to the licensing objectives of:

e The prevention of public nuisance;

e Public safety and:

e The prevention of crime and disorder.
Recommendations:

It is recommended that the premise licence for the Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge is revoked.

13 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 15

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022


https://www.shanzelize.uk/

Revocation is requested in light of ongoing non-compliances and a wilful disregard for residents
affected by the premise activities.

The licensing authority reserve the right to give evidence on any further incidents where the
licensing objectives have not been promoted which may take place at, or in the vicinity of the
premises, between the service of the application and the hearing and/or during the time
allowed for any appeal proceedings.

14 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 16

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022



Please tick v' Yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before? L]

If yes, please state the date of that application Day Month Year

If you have made representations relating to this premises before, please state what they were
and when you made them

Checklist Please tick v Yes

15 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 17

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022



= | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate v

= | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements
my application will be rejected v

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE
STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A
FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY
AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 5). If signing
on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

SIGNALUIE .o
Date .....ooevviniiiiiieiei, 281 JANUArY 2022.... .. et
Capacity ......coovviiiiiiin, Licensing INSPECIOr. ... . v

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post code

Telephone number

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)

Data Protection: The London Borough of Brent will use this information for the purposes of The Licensing Act 2003 and related purposes. Any
member of the public may examine the application form on request. Further information can be found at www.brent.gov.uk/privacy

You are providing your information to Brent Council, contact details business.licence@brent.gov.uk. The Council’s Data Protection Officer can be
contacted via dpo@brent.gov.uk, or 020 8937 1402.

Your information is collected for the purpose of processing your licence application as required to fulfil the council’s duties under the following
legislation, statutory or contractual requirement or obligation.

Legislation Context
Licensing Act 2003 For the processing of licensing applications and the prevention of fraud

The information may be shared with the Metropolitan Police, London Fire Brigade and teams within Brent Council, as statutory consultees, the Home
16 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 18

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022


http://www.brent.gov.uk/privacy
mailto:business.licence@brent.gov.uk
mailto:dpo@brent.gov.uk

Office to ascertain the right to work and HM Revenue and Customs, at their request, to identify potential fraud. The information shall be retained until
the licence is surrendered and shall be processed in adherence to your legal rights, including but not limited to the right to withdraw consent, right to
copies of your information and right to be forgotten. You have a right to lodge a complaint with the Information Commissioner’s Office
(www.ico.org.uk)

Notes for Guidance

1. Aresponsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other statutory bodies which exercise
specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are included in the grounds for
review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have actual authority to

do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Please return the completed form and any accompanying documents to the following address with a copy to the
premises licence holder / Club that the application relates to:-

Licensing Department
Brent Council

Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

@ 020 8937 5359

Email: business.licence@brent.gov.uk

Please follow the instructions in the checklist to submit the relevant copies to the responsible authorities. Contact

details shown below:
Chief Officer of Police

Brent Licensing Department

Fifth Floor

Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Tel: 020 8733 3206

Environmental Health
Fifth Floor

Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Tel: 020 8937 5252

Area Planning Service
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Tel: 020 8937 5210

Home Office Immigration Enforcement
Alcohol Licensing Team

Lunar House
40 Wellesley Road
Croydon

North West Area 1
London Fire Brigade
169 Union Street
London

SE10LL

Tel: 020 8555 1200 x38778

Children’s Services
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Public Safety Team
Fifth Floor

Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Tel: 020 8937 5359

17

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022

Page 19

Trading Standards
Fifth Floor

Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 0OFJ

Tel: 020 8937 5555

Licensing Authority
Fifth Floor

Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Tel: 020 8937 5359

DAAT

Public Health Directorate
Wembley Centre for Health and
Care

116 Chaplin Road

Wembley

HAO 4UZ

Review Application - Shanzelize, 11


http://www.ico.org.uk/

CR9 2BY

18 Review Application - Shanzelize, 11

Page 20

Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT 28.01.2022



Appendix 1

Brenl Civie Centre, Engineers Way,
Wambley, Middlesex. HAS OFJ

Tel; (020) 8337 5252
Ditect Line 020-B937 5561

Emall; @ns.nolseteam @ brent.gov.uk

FEGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT

Web: Wwww.brent.gov.uk
Date: 13/01/2019

Mr Hashem Beik Mohammadi

Shanzelize youursef; %
11 Kilburn Bridge ur erf 8R/M4017/18
Kilburn High Road Contact: (GG
Londan

NWE 6HT

Dear Mr Hasham Belk Mohammadi,

Environmental Protection Act 1990
11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, London, NW6 6HT

On the 12 January 2018, Officers from Environmental Health noted loud music emanating from
the above premises at such a level as to constitute a statutory nuisance within the meaning of the
law,

Therefore | am obliged to serve the enclosed Notice under Sectlon 80 of the Environmental
Protection Act 19980, This s intended to deal with this malter, not by taking proceedings in respecl
of this incident, but enabling the Councll 1o take formal legal action should there be any further
noise nulsance.

Should further complaints be received, we will investigate by monitating the situation. Monitoring
will either take the form of perlodic visits, 1o be carried out day or night, by officers who will engage
in non-intrusive monitoring (i.e. without alerting you prior to the visit) usually by visiting the person
making the complaint, and/or the use of remole moniioring equipment which measures and
records the noise being complained about,

Contravention of the notice could lead o the Insligation of criminal proceedings against you. The
maximum fine for each offence currently stands at an unlimited fine upon conviction. The previous

maximum fine was £20,000

Please note that there is a right of appealrto the notice. Application has to be made to the
Maglstrates Court within 21 days. The details are provided on the notes to the notice.

If there conlinues to be a persistent noise nulsance, the council will also consider applying to the
Courts for a warrani in order to seize all audio equipment from your premises.

Accordingly, | would strongly advise that you cease to cause nolse nuisance and refrain from
playing loud muslc at such a level as lo disturb your nelghbotrs.

Should you require any further Information, please do not hesitate to contact me al the above
address.

Yours sincerely,

g He Yy, 3 @B Brent - bullding a beller
GMYRADA Iyl P B ar S borough
P

()

INVISTON N unanLRe

------------- (=) (X o
UEAS = i
sl FOOTANINT

Oam® i




Environmental !laalth Offlcer

Regeneration and Environment

sned
AEh ey DALY,

Brent - building a betler
borough




Page 23



Dated: 13/01/2019 Signed:

I

Print Name: _

Regulatory Services
Authorised Officer

Regulatory Services, Brenl Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley HA9 0JF
Tel: 0208 937 5252
Email:ens.noiseteam@brent.gov.uk

Ref: EH/18/14017/MW

NB The person served with this notice may appeal against the notice to Brent
Maglstrates'Court, 448 High Read, London NW10 2DZ within twenty-one days
beginning with the date of service of the notice (see notes attached).

If iou reiuire further Information or have a query in respect of this notice, please call | N

Page 24




Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



APPENDIX 18

From | SR o e R |

Sent: 05 November 2020 09:05

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>;

Subject: Shanzelize - 11 Kilburn Bridge, North Maida Vale, London NW6 6HT
Good morning all,

Hope your all well. Please see the below criminal intelligence report that was received by
Palice this morning, from the above venue on 04/11/2020.

***************************************************************************
*********************************************************************#*****

EEEEEEEEEEEE S

On the 04/11/2020 at 20.14hrs, police were contacted by a member of the public, who had
attended SHANZELIZE RESTAURANT earlier, and went for the Shisha. He had contacted
police on CAD 7543/040CT20.

Initial remarks stated that he had left the location a short while ago, and stated there were
over a hundred people within, and there were no social distancing measures in place.

- had attended the location, and initially went to the rear of the location. There was
very loud music present, and people heard singing. The location was then entered from the
main entrance, and there were limited signs encouraging masks to be worn, and no hand
sanitiser. The staff were not wearing any PPE such as masks or gloves. Upon entering the
location, officers had walked directly to the rear of the location, where the shisha area is
located. Upon entering this place, it became evident that there was no measures in place in
regards to COVID. There were no social distancing measures in place, and the customers
were sat very close to each other. There is a bench that goes around the edge of the shisha
area, that was filled with customers. The tables in the middle were full, and people sat very
close together.

The manager/ person in charge on the day of attendance, is a _ The main owner
of the location is a Hashem MOHAMMADI _ He was in Turkey and may be

returning in three weeks.

Upon speaking to [ iife had stated that people had pushed their way in, even though he
had refused them entry. This cannot be validated at this stage.

- accepted responsibility of the reason why police had attended, and accepted that
there were a large amount of people present.

They had agreed to evacuate the location, and even when the customers were queuing,
there was no social distancing in place.

Body worn is available _ The circumstances can easily be seen.

Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



APPENDIX 28

Esther Chan
Licensing Inspector
Regulatory Services
Brent Council

21% July 2021-07-21

Dear Ms Esther Chan,

This letter is to confirm that Mr Hashem Beik Mohammadi, has authorised me to
communicate with you in relation to all matters regarding his licensable activities.

Kind regards,

N T

Page 66




Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

B re n t APPENDIX 29 Middlesex HA9 OFJ
TEL 020 8937 5303

EMAIL esther.chan@brent.gov.uk

WEB www.brent.gov.uk

Hashem Beik Mohammadi

21t July 2021

Our Ref: 2566
Dear Hashem Beik Mohammadi,

Licensing Act 2003 — Breach Premise Licence 679950
Re: Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, London, NW6 6HT

| am writing to confirm my visit on Thursday 15t July 2021 at aproximately 16:00hrs to inform you
that it has been reported a large number of customers were in the premises on Saturday 31 July
2021 to Sunday 4t July 2021, which gives me the reason to suspect you were carrying out
licensable activities in unauthorised areas.

It has been noted that large speakers were located on the stage at the far end of the basement.
You told me that the basement is used for ‘private parties’ and the DJ will remove the speakers.
You were warned again, that the basement and rear extended area must not be used to supply
licensable activities at anytime.

Request for CCTV

You were requested to provide CCTV footage for specific dates and times as part of my
investigation, which was confirmed via email followed by our telephone conversation on Friday
16th July 2021. You said, the matters will be resolved on Monday 19" July 2021. Unfortunately,
to date, you have not provided the CCTV footage.

At time of my visit, you were told to consider varying the DPS (Designated Premise Supervisor)
if you are unable to manage the day-to-day responsibility for the running of the business and the
responsibilty for authorising the alcohol sales.

On Wednesday 21t July 2021 at 10:4%hrs, | had a telephone conversation with your
representative, Mr* to outline my concerns connected to the premise. | was
informed by Mr [l that you are unable to provide the requested CCTV footage. Please
confirm in writing to explain the reasons why you are unable to provide CCTV footage.



Page 68



APPENDIX 30

On Fri, Jul 23, 2021 at 2:55 PM Esther, Chan <Esther.Chan@brent.gov.uk> wrote:

Thank you for your email.
Please can you confirm the following:

. When the new cameras were installed and please provide paperwork as
evidence?
. Are there any cameras covering the rear structure and basement?

Kind Regards
Esther Chan
Licensing Inspector
Regulatory Services
Brent Couneil

Tel: 0208 937 5303

www.brent.gov.uk
(@Brent_Council

From:
Sent: 23 July 2021 14:24
To: Esther, Chan <Esther.Chan@brent.gov.uk_

Subject: CCTV footage
Dear Ms Chan,

Following a meeting with Mr Mohammadi, he has explained to me that the camera
system that they had was not operating properly, several of the cameras were not
recording and didn't cover all areas of the property and finally quit working all
together, a couple of weeks ago.

The people that had fitted it attended the property and informed him that it had been
rendered useless after recent water damage and removed all their equipment from the

property.

Mr Mohammadi has since contacted them to retrieve the footage you have requested
and they have informed him that all the data has been lost.

He inquired why they couldn't get the information from the hard drive and they
informed him that was not possible due to the damage and they had disposed of the
equipment as it was worthless.

Page 69



|

APPENDIX 30

Mr Mohammadi installed a completely new system simultaneously, with 16 operating
cameras and it is operating around the property and in good working order and now
understands the importance of maintaining it, to provide needed information when
required.

He is very sorry that he is unable to comply with your request and assures you that it
will not happen again and hopes that you will forgive him.

Please let us know if you require any further information.

Kind regards,

Page 70



Page 71



APPENDIX 32

| From:
Sent: 27 July 2021 08:09
To: Esther, Chan <Esther.Chan@brent.gov. uk| NG00

Subject: Re: CCTV footage
Dear Esther Chan,

The details of the CCTV system and invoice are attached below.

I have been advised that there are 16 cameras in all, covering the front and rear of the
building and 1 will do a live review in the next couple of days.

I have also been told that they did not install a camera in the basement, as they have
no plans to use it as a customer area at this time. When everything is sorted out, with
licencing, planning etc., if they are allowed, they will use it for private birthday
parties or such.

Please let me know if you require any further information.
Regards,

Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



APPENDIX 35

B Lakisloune :
SHANZELIZE e

s (T
AYAD HATTAD B ANMAD ALMESAD

B[ BASS

shanzelioe lxang e LiredinusicEpShshabidayriphifsatoadaynigh
naee

i

@ ahnnTelize loungs s
V' Sfaaeksr Swrtasgprd Ko anoh ¥

WENNESDAY

11 ¥ILBURM BRIDGE - LONDON . NW6 6HT

WEDMESBAY | START FROM 10 TILL LATE
MORB 07366179900

JoamanamaLs
i \

Qv [

22 Mken
pranzeloe lownge LivegmusiereStishaswednosdapnig
nightrmabesngertiianancinger #latno right . o

i

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87



APPENDIX 42

Fron G ]

Sent: 17 November 2021 12:31
To: Esther, Chan <Esther.Chan@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Shanzelize

Dear Esther Chan,

Thank you for all your consideration and the courtesy call regarding Mr Mohammadi
and Shanzelize.

As I confirmed I am no longer in discussions with him regarding the transfer of his
licence to myself.

However he is still my friend and following your call, I did speak with him and he
informed me that he is looking for a suitable individual to transfer it to.

Please also note that for some time now, I have been unable to continue helping him
as his friend, in his daily affairs, due to my health and am no longer doing so.

Kind regards,

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



METROPOLITAN

POLICE

The Licensing Authority

Brent Civic Centre Brent Borough Licensing Department

Harrow Police Station

Engineers Way
Wembley 74, Northolt Road
Middlesex Hz_irrow
HA9 OFJ Middlesex
HA2 ODN
Your ref: Shanzelize E-mail: Gary.L.R.Norton@met.police.uk
Our ref: 21/2965NW Web: www.met.police.uk

Mobile:07500 993 899
Date: 25/02/2022

Police Licensing comments regarding Brent Council Review of: SHANZELIZE,
11 KILBURN BRIDGE, KILBURN HIGH ROAD, LONDON NW6 6HT

| acknowledge receipt of an application for the review of under section 51 of the
Licensing Act 2003 from Brent Council.

On behalf of the Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis, | wish to make a
representation, as police believe the following objectives have been
undermined, namely the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and
the Prevention of Public Nuisance.

Background on venue

The venue is situated on a parade of commercial business premises running
alongside a busy main road (which forms part of the A5). Crucially, a gated
residential development, Mallard Close, sits directly behind the rear of the Shanzelize
premises, accessed off Brondesbury Villas.

Requlated Entertainment

Monday to Sunday — 08:00hrs -00:00hrs

Late Night Refreshments

Monday to Sunday — 23.00hrs — 01.00hrs

Sale or Supply of Alcohol (For consumption on or off the premises)

Monday to Sunday — 08.00hrs — 00:00hrs

Hours Premises is Open to the Public

Page 95




Monday to Sunday - 08.00hrs — 01.00hrs

Brent Police Licensing support the review of said licence due to the ongoing issues,
(including those noted during the Covid pandemic), that demonstrate a disregard for
the principles of the premises licence and licensing objectives. The management and
venue have continued to flout their responsibilities towards the licensing objective
and fail to address a number of key premises licence conditions.

Below is a list of notable issues that have occurred in the past three years or so.

22/02/2019

Made aware of Council letter to Hashem Beik Mohammadi regarding 20 licensing
breaches that required addressing. Also mention of complaints over noise issues.
02/03/2019

Notification of licensable activity being conducted at the rear of the premises which is
outside the permissible licensable area.

10/04/2019

Threat of enforcement action by Brent Council due to licensable activities being
conducted outside the permissible licensed area, outside the front and rear of the
premises.

22/05/2019

Invitation to attend an interview with Brent Council to discuss continued lack of
adherence to licensable activities after another visit on 12/05/2019 revealed 7 licence
condition breaches.

No specific records, for a time due to Coronavirus epidemic.

CAD5974/13DEC2020

Caller reports the premises is open for business despite concerns over Coronavirus
lockdown prohibiting such activities. However, the 3 tier system in place would
suggest that the venue could open if serving substantial meals with drinks.

15T April 2021

Brent Council warning letter to Mr Hasem Mohammadi regarding the merge of 11 &
12 Kilburn High Road in breach of S36 (6) (b) of the Licensing Act 2003.

13" April 2021

Premises granted pavement licence in consideration to Covid’s financial impact,
despite the problems with the venue. Licence granted with additional conditions.
04/07/2021

Police CAD reference: 796/04Jul21

Att Locn :11 KILBURN BRIDGE, NW6:SHANZELIZE LOUNGE
ENTERED BY: CHS (p226586 ) AT: 2021-07-04 01:44:47
~INFT IM IN THE SHISHA LOUNGE, THEY ARE REFUSING TO LET
ME LEAVE MTF
01:45:00 04JUL21 CHS #2
ENTERED BY: CHS (p226586 ) AT: 2021-07-04 01:45:00
~INFT SECURITY HAVE TOLD ME THAT ITS A LOCK IN AND THEY
HAVE WEAPONS
01:45:33 04JUL21 CHS #3
ENTERED BY: CHS (p226586 ) AT: 2021-07-04 01:45:33
~INFT THERE ARE 200 PEOPLE HERE, THEY SAID I CANT LEAVE
UNTIL EVERYONE
ELSE LEAVES
01:47:38 04JUL21 193291 H2669 #4

AWN ~ NWE
THIS WILL BE LINKED TO YOUR CAD 776
01:47:53 04JUL21 CHS #5

Page 96




ENTERED BY: CHS (p226586 ) AT: 2021-07-04 01:47:53
~OP CALLER IS NOW SAYING HE IS O/S THE VENUE
01:48:55 04JUL21 CHS #6
ENTERED BY: CHS (p226586 ) AT: 2021-07-04 01:48:55
~OP CALLER IS O/S VENUE BUT STATES FRIEND IS INSIDE AND
SECURITY NOT
LETTING ANYONE ELSE LEAVE
01:49:09 04JUL21 741773 H2723 #7
NWE~AWN NOTED 11 KILBURN BRIDGE ON YOUR GROUND, OUR IRV
UNIT WILL NOT
GO ACROSS.
01:49:14 04JUL21 CHS #8
ENTERED BY: CHS (p226586 ) AT: 2021-07-04 01:49:14
~INFT CALLER ALSO MENTIONED SECURITY HAD BATONS

04:55:38 04JUL21 193291 H2669 #13

~"NWE

CCTV ADVISED FROM PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE THAT DOOR STAFF
KEEP THE SHUTTERS

CLOSED AND LET PATRONS OUT IN GRPS, RATHER THAN ONE AT
AT TIME.

07/07/2021

Police made aware of Council historical communication from Senior Control Room
Officer that:

“The above named property (Shanzelize) is on Kilburn High Road opposite the
Nationwide Building Society. On Friday 14" & Saturday 15" May (2021) | did notice
in the early hours many people going in & out by knocking on the shutters. The
shutter are then raised & lowered. Anyone passing would think that they were closed.
| thought about the possible health & safety issue here too. Please can an inspection
or investigation take place... when then run out of ice they go to the 24 hour shop
near junction of Coventry Close.”

16/07/2021

E-mail from Brent Council licensing acknowledging reports that calls made to police
about illegal lock-ins taking place over weekend of 3'9/4" of May 2021, as well as
complaints to Council about use of the rear of the premises in an unlicensed area to
provide licensable activities and shisha. Brent Council visited on 15" July 2021 and
requested CCTV footage for 4" July 2021, but the system was reported to be taken
down to be replaced. Mr Mohammadi was reminded of the area of the premises that
should be used for licensable activities.

19/07/2021

Notification of a resident complaint from Brent Council about the premises, stating
that the venue “..does not abide by its licensing rules.” and “routinely stay open into
unsociable hours compromising her families sleep.”

Several more warning letters and visits from the Council to give the premises
management an opportunity to amend its practices were sent over a number of
months.

Police visits

22/10/2021 @ 2039hrs Exhibit GLN/1

The premises was visited by the Council and police and was open for business. The
area of the premises designated for licensable activities was largely empty of custom
and staff. Beyond the end of the licensed area, through rear doors, a large enclosed
marquee style tent is still erected outside and clearly conducting licensable activities.
This was erected without appropriate planning authorisation (this issue is still
ongoing).

Page 97




28/01/2021 @ 2205hrs Exhibit GLN/2

The premises was visited again by Council and the Police and on this occasion Mr
Mohammadi was present. The venue was still deserted inside, but operating with
loud music outside in the marquee style area, a DJ playing loud music, along with
shisha smoking and belly dancing. | discussed the situation with Mr Mohammad.. |
reminded him that on numerous times over the past 3 years he had been advised not
to use the area at the rear of the premises (beyond the rear doors of the licensable
area). Yet whenever we visited we always found the licensable area empty and the
rear being used, with licensable activities and custom. He explained he had sold his
property abroad to fund the business and had invested a lot of his own money into
the premises and he felt the Council were being unfair. He said “What can | do?” |
explained that he should be running the licensable activities in line with his premises
licence and not in areas not designated for use, as was the case again that evening.

SUMMARY

Even if you ignore some of the dubious circumstances and practices found during the
Covid lockdown (the council have provided CCTV footage of customers coming and
going at very late times as well as during COVID | understand), there are still
numerous contentious licensing issues that have proved unresolvable.

The rear Shisha area is clearly the main source of income and focus for the
business, but shouldn’t be in use under current circumstances for a number of
reasons. Firstly, it would appear that no planning permission was given to erect the
structure (this is an ongoing legal dispute at present). Secondly, this area should not
be used for licensable activity as it is outside the agreed area to conduct them.

Even if the permissions, such as planning, or the major variation application were
applied for, we would have to oppose it on the grounds of causing ASB via noise
pollution to local residents of Mallards Close, due to its close proximity. When you
add in the licence holder and premises practices of flouting the existing license
conditions, the police have little confidence in their ability to rectify the situation if they
are given another chance.

| have attempted to make playable copies of body worn video for the purposes of
presenting supporting evidence to our visits, however, at this time | cannot send them
in with this correspondence and hope to forward on later on.

Yours Sincerely,

Gary Norton 2965NW
Licensing Constable — Brent Police

Page 98




From: Lewis, Diane <Diane.Lewis@brent.gov.uk>

Sent: 25 February 2022 10:00

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: CONSULT: Review - Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT -
23635

Dear Business Licence,

I have considered the above Premises Licence Review Application ref: 23635 for
premises Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT. | would like to
make representation in relation to public nuisance.

Shanzelize is located along a high road within a mixed commercial and residential
area. The premises has an open area to the rear which is used for shisha smoking
and entertainment. The shisha area directly backs onto residential properties at
Mallard Close, Brondesbury Villas, North Maida Vale, NW6 6AZ.

The Nuisance Control Team have been investigating complaints regarding noise
from the premises for several years and historically, Mr Mohammedi has a record of
non-compliance. Between 2018 and 2019, the team received a number of complaints
from local residents and upon investigation, officers established the existence of
statutory nuisance from loud amplified music and amplified speech. As such, a Noise
Abatement Notice was served upon Mr Mohammedi on 13/01/19 requiring him, as
the person responsible for the nuisance, to abate the nuisance. However, we
continued to receive complaints from local residents and officers witnessed a breach
of the Notice for which Mr Mohammedi was successfully prosecuted. The
prosecution resulted in a fine which totalled £13,185 including costs.

Despite the conviction, the Nuisance Control Team continued to receive complaints
from October 2019. The complaints were of the same nature, namely loud amplified
music and amplified speech/vocals emanating from the premises. More recently, As
a result of complaints, officers from the Nuisance Control Team have been carrying
out pro-active monitoring of noise levels at weekends and noted the following:

22/01/22, 23:30 hours

Officers visited the area and noted loud amplified music and amplified vocals clearly
audible from Mallard Close. The noise was emanating from the shisha area at
Shanzelize. After monitoring for 10 minutes, officers went to speak to Mr Hashem
Mohammedi and advised him that the music levels were unacceptable. Officers
brought Mr Mohammedi around to Mallard Close to advise him of how the noise from
the premises would be perceived by local residents. Despite Mr Mohammedi being
spoken to by officers on 22/01/22 regarding excessive music, the following weekend,
officers had cause to speak to him again regarding the noise.

28/01/22, 21:25 hours

Officers visited the area following a complaint from a local resident alleging loud
amplified music emanating from Shanzelize. Officers monitored from Mallard Close
where loud amplified music could clearly be heard. Officers, once again went to
speak to Mr Mohammedi and brought him round to Mallard Close to witness noise
levels for himself.

In addition to the witnessing of excessive noise by officers, local residents have been
reporting excessive noise from the premises via Brent Council’s Noise App,
evidenced by a number of recordings. The most recent of these recordings were
made between 18/12/21 and 14/01/22.

Page 99



Mr Mohammedi has demonstrated complete a lack of regard of his legal obligations
to ensure that noise from the premises does not cause a statutory nuisance to local
residents. We are of the opinion that should the premises be allowed to continue to
operate under its current licence, further incidents of statutory nuisance will occur. As
such, | would support the application for the licence to be revoked in the interests of
the local residents..

Kind regards,

Diane Lewis

Nuisance Control Officer
Community Protection
Regeneration and Environment
Brent Council

Page 100



(QD)
;) Brent

Public Safety

Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way,
Wembley, Middlesex. HA9 OF)

Tel: (020) 8937 2439
Email: laura.davies@brent.gov.uk
Date: 24/02/2022

Dear Business Licencing,

Licensee: Mr Hasem Beik Mohammadi
Premises: Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT

Further to the application to review the premises licence for the Shanzelize, | would like to put
forward a representation in regard to concerns surrounding public safety, supporting the
recommendation for the licence to be revoked.

On 8™ October 2021, | visited the premises with Esther Chan in the presence of Mr Mohammadi and
Mr Tahzib. My reason for attending was that concerns had been raised by Esther Chan regarding
public safety, as a letter had been received from the London Fire Bridge (LFB) (dated 10" September
2021 - appendix 36 of Esther Chan’s representation) highlighting fire safety deficiencies at the
premises.

As highlighted within the LFB letter, no written fire risk assessment was available and when | asked
Mr Mohammadi if one had ever been done, he could not answer. None of fire extinguishers
throughout the premises had records to show they had been serviced annually and when |
highlighted this to Mr Mohammadi and Mr Tahzib, they were unaware of this requirement under BS
5306-3:2000.

Throughout the premises there was a heavy use of ‘daisy chaining’ extension cables, something
which poses a greater fire risk.

The rear seating area of the premises had seating for 100+ people due to the layout and type of
seating in use, such as booth seating around the edge of the extension. As highlighted by the LFB in
their report, emergency exit signage was insufficient and the rear exit was not compliant as an
emergency exit due to it being locked with by a sliding gate on the inside, the door was obstructed
by cleaning materials upon arrival and the rear step leading out of the door was not stable.

In the absence of a fire risk assessment being done by a competent assessor, the safe capacity of the
premises was unknown. Therefore | raised concerns that the permitted number of persons allowed
in the premises as a whole could exceed the maximum capacity for an emergency, as there were
only 2 exits. (One exit being the door mentioned in the above paragraph)

When inspecting the basement, there were a number of decorations and confetti on the floor with a
mixer and speaker system near the stage. There were large pools of water on the floor with evidence
on the celling that there had been a leak at some point. To add further concern, there were
extension cables ‘daisy chained’ within the basement, raising the same concern of an increased fire
risk.

Page 101



C?’} Brent

After inspecting the premises, | sat with Mr Mohammadi, Mr Tahzib and Esther Chan to discuss my
findings, along with the concerns raised by Esther Chan. In regard to elements surrounding public
safety, | advised they seek a competent assessor urgently to conduct their fire risk assessment, to
address the actions highlighted and to send a copy of the report too Esther Chan and the LFB, noting
the areas previously highlighted by the LFB. | reminded both Mr Mohammadi and Mr Tahzib that fire
extinguishers need to be serviced annually by a competent engineer, with records kept on site.

In relation to the rear seating area, both Esther Chan and | reminded them that this was an
unlicensed area, which is unsuitable for shisha due to it being fully enclosed. Mr Tahzib understood
the points raised and interpreted this information to Mr Mohammadi, along with relaying the
options available for them to consider in order to make the area suitable and legal.

It was evident that Mr Mohammadi did not understand the seriousness of everything that was
mentioned from a public safety perspective, as his response throughout the meeting was business
had been difficult due to the pandemic and that he has invested large amounts of money into the
business.

To date, no fire risk assessment has been submitted to the London Borough of Brent.

Yours sincerely,

(%uux

Laura Davies
Public Safety Officer

Page 102



\

D&M Fij <
@ﬁiﬂgsﬂ:ezef&eg Ltd

Appendix 4 — Seating area at the rear of the
premises

Page 103



Appendix 5 — Seating area at the rear of the
premises

Appendix 7“— Rear fire exit st‘ep »

Appendix 8 — Basement Celling

Page 104



From: Ramesh, Keerthana

Sent: 08 February 2022 14:20

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Review of Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT
Importance: High

Dear Licensing Authority,

On behalf of Environmental Health, | wish to support the application for the review of
Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT.

| have now had a chance to review the history of the premises and can report as below.

We have had complaints about smoking inside the premises including the basement at
Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT which is in contravention to the Health Act 2006.
In 2019 a warning letter outlining the contravention in relation to the above legislation was
hand delivered to the premises (Exhibit 1). This gave the proprietor clear information on
compliance.

In 2021, under the, The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (All Tiers) (England)
Regulations 2020, officers found smoking inside the premises which was in contravention to
the legislation above. A warning letter was again hand delivered and clear explanation was

given that shisha smoking is not permitted.

The premises is on our ‘list of concern’ as it undermines public safety objective.
Kind Regards

Mrs Keerthana Ramesh
Senior Environmental Health Officer

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



p Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way,
D Wembley, Middlesex. HA9 OFJ
) Brent
Direct Line (020) 8937 5174
Email: andreas.kirschner@brent.gov.uk
REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT
Web: www.brent.gov.uk
Date: 21/02/2019

Mr Beik Mohammadi

Shanzelize Your Ref:

11 Kilburn Bridge Our Ref:  SFINS/14241/18
Kilburn High Road Contact: A Kirschner
London

NW6 6HT

Dear Mr Beik Mohammadi,

The Health Act 2006

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

The Smoke-free (Premises and Enforcement) Regulations 2006

The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations 2016

Children and Young Persons (Protection from Tobacco) Act 1991(as amended) Section 4
The Companies Act 2006

Re: Smoking of tobacco/shisha at 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, London, NW6 6HT

We have received reports that guests/customers are allowed to smoke at your premises.

I would like to remind you that since 1st July 2007 smoking is prohibited in 'enclosed’ or
'substantially enclosed' parts of premises that are open to the public or are used as a place of
work by more than one person (including vehicles).

Smoking includes the smoking of tobacco or anything which contains tobacco, or being in
possession of lit tobacco or anything which contains tobacco, or being in possession of any other
lit substance in a form in which it can be smoked. This includes cigarettes, herbal cigarettes,
hand rolled cigarettes, cigars, pipes, water pipes, shisha, hookah etc.

The definition of enclosed and substantially enclosed is given below.

Enclosed: Premises will be considered to be "enclosed" if they have a ceiling or roof, and except
for doors and windows or passageways are wholly enclosed, whether on a permanent or
temporary basis.

Substantially enclosed: Premises will be considered to be "substantially enclosed" if they have
a ceiling or roof, but there are openings in the walls which are less than half of the total wall area,
including other structures that serve the purpose of walls and constitute the perimeter of the
premises. When working out the area of an opening, no account can be taken of openings in
which doors, windows or other fittings that can be opened or shut.

This is known as the 50% rule.
It is your legal responsibility as the proprietor and/or manager of the above premises to prevent
people from smoking in your premises as your premises does not comply with the smoke-free law.

'No-smoking' sighs must be displayed to enclosed or substantially enclosed parts of your
premises.

Page 107



All receptacles (shisha pipes and tobacco containers) and tobacco products must display
the required health warnings. You also have to display an A3 size sign stating that it is
illegal to sell tobacco or tobacco products to anyone under the age of 18 and display your
business ownership details.

Health and Safety laws require you to assess all risks, specifically those arising from open
fire (charcoal), smoke and other dangers that could pose arisk to staff or customers

Please note that anyone who does not comply with the smoke-free law will be committing a
criminal offence. The Fixed Penalty Notices and maximum fine for each offence are set out in the
table below.

Example of Penalties

Offence Who is liable? Fixed Penalty Fixed Penalty |Court
Notice (if paid in |Notice (if paid |Awarded
15 days) in 29 days) Fine
Health and Safety Business owner or N/A N/A Can be
contraventions employer unlimited
and/or
imprisonment
Persons smoking in a | Anyone who smokesina |£30 £50 up to £200
smoke free place or a |smoke free place or a
vehicle vehicle
Failing to prevent Anyone who controls or N/A N/A up to £2,500
smoking in a smoke |manages the smoke free
free place or a premises or a vehicle
vehicle

The Fixed Penalty Notice includes information on the details of the offence and how payment is to be made. Anyone who receives a
Fixed Penalty Notice can choose to have the matter dealt with by a court. If a person does not pay a fixed penalty notice, the matter
may also be referred to a court to be dealt with.

Officers from Brent Council's Regulatory Services will carry out routine inspections of premises to
ensure compliance with the law.

Where contraventions of smoke-free or other legislations are identified appropriate
enforcement action will be taken.

Further information on smoke free law can be found at:
www.brent.gov.uk and
www.smokefreeengland.co.uk

Please contact me quoting the above reference if you would like any further advice or information.

Yours sincerely,

Andreas Kirschner
Senior Enforcement Officer
Regeneration and Environmental Services

hBO, o~ h —~
Spss T ¥ (o) | 7 o
2 A3 8 K 47 eipiighi o [ A Brent - building a better borough
2 Al o 150 1400 ===
Prspey INVESTCRS [N FEOMLE —

Avwswdod fae accclbonca

Page 108



From: Patel, Kushal

Sent: 31 January 2022 18:21

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT - 23635

Dear Sir/Madam,

On behalf of the planning authority, we confirm that no planning permission for the
premises to be used for shisha smoking exists. Furthermore, the large structure/enclosure to
the rear of the premises also does not benefit from planning consent. This is a breach of
planning control, and the council have taken formal enforcement action as significant
planning harm is caused. We have taken enforcement action to remedy the breach, but the
owner has appealed and we are currently awaiting for the outcome of the appeal. The
reason why we are pursuing enforcement action is because of the design of the structure,
being thin, noise transmits to neighbouring residential premises throughout the hours of
operation. This is detrimental to residential amenity.

Regards,

Kushal Patel
Principal Planning Enforcement Officer

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 45 - CUSTOMERS IN REAR SEATING AREA

df\ Sh @ﬂ L@ U

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 46 - MUSICIAN PLAYING KEYBOARD IN REAR
SEATING AREA

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 47 - MALE SIA STAFF SEATED IN LICENSED
AREA

Page 115




This page is intentionally left blank



B Withess Statement
| ® Brent CJ Act 1967, s9:

MC Act 1980, ss5A(a) and 5B;
MC Rules 1981, r70;

UPRN: | [ ] | ]
Statement of: ......cccociiiiiinns ESther Chan ...
Age of if under 18.........cccceevieeeens (if over 18 insert ‘over 18’).......cccceveeriiinns Oover 18.......iirrn e
OCCUPALION: ..eiiiiiiiieeeiieeee e LiCcenSIiNg INSPECTOT ..ueiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e s ee e

This statement (consisting of ..2..page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and |
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated anything
which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated: 17th February 2022

SIgNAtUre: oo -

I am employed by the London Borough of Brent as a Licensing Inspector. My duties include enforcing the Licensing Act
2003.

On Friday 25" January 2022, the Licensing Authority submitted an application to review the premise licence of
Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT. The review application form and evidence documents
were sent to the licence holder, Mr Hashem Mohammadi via email.

As part of the process, | also visited the premises on 25t January 2022 at 22:05hrs with the Licensing Police Officers,
PC Gary Norton and PC Paul Scott to hand deliver the review application form with the evidence including three discs
containing footages from various sources.

At the time of our visit, the premises was open to the public. The licensed area being the restaurant was practically
empty. Most of the customers were sitting at the rear seating area consuming refreshments and smoking shisha
(Appendix 45).

Upon entering the rear seating area, | noticed a female dressed in a peach colour traditional belly dancing costume
standing by the bar. She was positioned in a manner that she was about to make an entry into the rear seating area to
perform a dance to the audience.

When she acknowledged our presence, she did not proceed to perform and sat on a chair awaiting instructions from
staff members.

| then entered the rear seating area and noticed a male playing the keyboard on the left hand side. It was clear that
regulated entertainment was being provided in an unauthorised area (Appendix 46).

When | saw Mr Mohammadi in the licensed area, | asked him to confirm if he had received my review application via
email earlier in the day. He said he had received my email but due to being busy, he did not have the opportunity to
read the review application bundle. He said he has passed the documents to his solicitor.




Continuation of Statement of ............... Esther Chan...........cocccvviveeee e, Page No: 2of2

A hard copy of the documents and DVD dics were handed to Mr Mohammadi in the presence of the Police Officers.

During my presence, | noticed there were no SIA staff present as per conditions embedded on the premise licence,
which stipulates the following:

Condition 1 - Door supervisors shall wear clothing that can be clearly and easily identified on CCTV.
Condition 2 - Door supervisors of a sufficient number and gender mix, shall be employed from 21:00 hours on any day
when the premises are open for the sale of alcohol with music either live or recorded and the facilities for dance or the

performance of dance past midnight.

Condition 3 - A register/log containing the names, badge number, dates & times of duty of security staff and any incidents
that occur shall be kept and made available to the Police and Licensing Authority.

| questioned Mr Mohammadi why he had no SIA staff present. He then pointed at a male who was sitting by the table
and claimed the male was his door staff but hadn’t started his shift.

The male was dressed in patterned jacket and dark trousers. When called, he approached us to show us his SIA badge
details, however he was not wearing anything to identify himself as a SIA staff (Appendix 47).

Mr Mohammadi then gave the male SIA a badge holder and instructed him to complete the SIA register, when I’d asked
to view the door log register.

At this point, we stood by the bar, when | asked Mr Mohammadi why he had ignored the Council’s warnings by continuing
to use unauthorised areas to provide licensable activities. He said he has to pay his rates and rent.

PC Norton explained the issues to Mr Mohammadi. During their conversation, | observed a number of customers
entering the premises without being searched or questioned by the SIA staff. The customers entered the rear seating
area.

We left the scene to continue with our duties.

Page 118



Pictures from the Police as part of Police Representation, Agenda item 3.7

Photo 1

2021-10-22 20:41:02 +0;
AXON BODY 3 X604@8@53H

iewed by p224780 (met.uk evidence.com) on 1 S Mar 2022

1> 0200 / 0530 @1X

Photo 2

20211022 20421
AXON BODY 3' X60440!

viewed by p224780 (met.uk.evidence.com) on 15 Mar 2022

l «b I» ©217 / 0530 @1X

Page 119



Police photo 3

1921-10-22 20:41:16
AXON BODY 3 X6@48@5

by p224780 (met.uk.evidence.com) on 15 Mar;2022
- e W,

Police photo 4

Page 120



2021-10-22 20:41:37 +0100
AXON BODY 3 X6040a53H

% 1> 0248 / 0530 @1X

Police photo 6

Page 121



" N
‘u.'

n ¢ 0335 / 0530 @
U

Police photo 7

?

‘ ‘}Wi)'|)224780(met.uk.evidence.com)‘[g_}g SiMarc2
\ ,: N

Page 122

2921-10-22 20:42: 28

AXON BODY 3 X6@

40053V




Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Date: 25 February 2022 at 19:46:43 GMT

To: "Esther, Chan" <Esther.Chan@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: The Shanzelize 11-12 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road -
REPRESENTATIONS

Dear Esther Chan, I hope you’re well and that I am not too late to make representations on a
licence that is currently with you for review to revoke.

I have lived on Kilburn High Road for over 10 years and recently a neighbour of the
Shanzelize venue. | am surprised to see it being so negatively reviewed and considered. Itis
without doubt one of the less troubled venue’s on Kilburn High Road, that if anything
provides a community space uniquely middle-eastern, that serves the community well.

When compared to other venues that populate this part of Kilburn The Shanzelize is less
frequented by emergency services. Whilst other venues are renowned here for the number
and frequency of police and ambulance service visits required by their customers and staff
throughout the week. From my own experience the customers of the Shanzelize are more
respectful and less of a public nuisance than those of its neighbouring public houses.

In these times, post pandemic, where London has seen a serious demise in footfall we need to
be supporting venues such as this to work within regulations not revoking their

license. Kilburn is a thriving multi-cultural area that is just beginning to wake up from its
Covid shock. This is a virtually young business that is trying to survive, as we all did
throughout Londons pandemic. | would have expected those living around the Shazelize to
be a little more compassionate to the area and those attempting to make a living here. In
addition to adding to Kilburn High Roads attraction as a thriving living centre.

The Shanzelize is contributing to Kilburn High Rd. It is adding to its vibrancy and reflecting
its community. | would ask you not to revoke its license but to encourage it to grow

safely. And perhaps encourage those concerned neighbours to extend their awareness
beyond their own cultural confines and embrace Kilburn’s diversity.

Page 125


mailto:Esther.Chan@brent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 11 February 2022 13:33
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Fwd: Noise complaint about shanzelize

Hello ,

I’m a flat owner and resident of
| was about to complain about the restaurant/nightclub Shanzelize when | saw your note on
the lamppost in front of it . So I’'m very happy that someone already started a complaint .

Shanzelize play loud live music nowadays at weekends until midnight but a while ago they
also played sometimes longer and during the week .

As a resident | feel like being in the middle of a live concert with very loud music and
microphone singing / talking . My flat mate ||| | GGG couldn’t even hear
tv with closed windows .

Even on Christmas Day evening after 11pm it was so loud that | complained by trying to
phone and later received a message ‘ merry Christmas © . They continued to play loud music .
Totally unacceptable!

I told them they certainly wouldn’t have a licence for outside as it’s not a building , it’s more
like a tent without any noise insulation where these events take place . Nothing happened .
Altogether the owners seem to be very disrespectful and rude .

Also they are keeping 2 dogs next to the back entrance from mallard close . These dogs don’t
seem to be looked after enough , keep on barking in the night .

Please contact me anytime if you have questions .

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 14 February 2022 19:50
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Noise complaint about Shanzelize Restaurant - Kilburn High Road

Hello ,

I’m a flat owner and resident at ||| GGG

| know a lot of my neighbours have already sent a complaint/written representation about the
restaurant/nightclub Shanzelize so | wanted to add myself to that list.

Shanzelize play loud live/radio music at weekends until midnight but a while ago they also
played till even later and also during the week. Around Christmas time it was particularly
bad.

My neighbours and | have talked to them before in the past (before Covid) and every time
they said they'd do something but then kept it quiet for a bit and then started playing loud
music again. Then Covid came and things went obviously quiet but over the last 3-4 months
the situation has escalated.

| am pretty sure they don't have a licence for outside as it’s not a proper building , it’s more
like a tent without any noise insulation where these events take place.
The owners seem to be very disrespectful and rude .

Please contact me anytime if you have questions or need any more info

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 25 February 2022 10:02
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Fwd: Complaint about Shanzelize on Kilburn High Street

Hi,
My wife and | are tenants in ||| | GczNINEINGGE

We've been having some challenges with one of the venues on the High Street called
Shanzelize and unfortunately, our phone calls to report the "public nuisance™ at all hours of
the night haven't resulted in anything. So | was pleased to see a sign on the lamp post outside
the venue encouraging members of the public to email complaints as the premises' license is
being reviewed.

The music is unbearably loud, especially on weekends, which at times goes on until after
midnight.

If one reads the reviews on Google, there appears to be a general disregard for anyone but
themselves which probably explains why they don't care about the inconvenience they cause
their neighbours. Just last week, one of the tenants on the top floor in the building above them
vacated their apartment because of the ongoing disturbances.

Let me know if you have any further questions.

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning, Transportation & Licensing
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way

" Wembley
2 L HAS OFd

TEL: 620 8237 535¢
EMAIL: business.licence@brent.gov.uk
WEB: www.brent.gov.uk

London Borough of Brent

Premises Licence

Part A

This Premises Licence was granted by Brent Council, Licensing Authority for the area of the Borough of Brent under the
Licensing Act 2003

Original grant date: 12 January 2011
Current issue date: 01 December 2018

Authorised signatory

Premises licence number: 673950

Part 1 — premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordinance survey map reference or description

Shanzelize
11, Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, London, Brent, NW6 6HT

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

SecliopAehSS




Section Recorded Music:
Section Performance of dance:

Section Anything of a similar description to that falling within (E), (F) or {G):

Section Films:
Section Plays:

Section I: Provision of Late Night Refreshments:
Section J: Sale or Supply of Alcohol:(On and off the premises)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Section Live Music:

Da Start Time End Time
iMonday 08:00 00:00
Tuesday 08:00 00:00
tWednesday 08:00 00:00
Thursday 08:00 00:00
Friday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00
New Years eve in to new years day hours to be extended to 0800 (24hrs)

Section Recorded Music:

iDay Start Time {End Time
Monday 08:00 00:00

uesday 08:00 00:00

Wednesday 08:00 00:00
Thursday 08:00 00:00
Friday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00
New years eve into hew years day hours to be extended to 0800 24hrs

iSection Performance of dance:

Da Start Time End Time
fMonday 08:00 00:00
Tuesday 08:00 00:00
Wednesday 08:00 00:00
‘Thursday 08:00 00:00
Friday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00

New years into New Years day hours to be extended to 0800 (24hrs)

Section Anything of a similar descri

ion 1g that falling within (E), (F) or (G):

Da Start Time End Time
IMonday 08:00 00:00
Tuesday 08:00 00:00
[Wednesday 08:00 00:00
IThursday 08:00 00:00
iFriday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00

Page 134




New Years eve into new years day hours to be extended to 0800 (24hrs)

Section Films:

Da Start Time End Time
iMonday 08:00 00:00
ITuesday (8:00 00:00
Wednesday 08:00 00:00
Thursday 08:00 00:00
fFriday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00

Section Plays:

[Day Start Time End Time
iMonday 08:00 00:00
Tuesday 08:00 00:00
Wednesday 08:00 00:00
[Thursday 08:00 00:00
[Friday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00
Section |; Provision of Late Night Refreshments:

(Day Start Time End Time
(Monday 23:00 01:00
Tuesday 23:00 01:00
Wednesday 23:00 01:00
Thursday 23:00 01:00
iFriday 23:00 01:00
Saturday 23:00 01:00
Sunday 23:00 01:00

New Years eve into new years day hours to be extended to 0500

Section J: Sale or Supply of Alcohol:(For consumption on and off the premises)

Da Start Time IEnd Time
Monday 08:00 00:00
Tuesday 08:00 00:00
Wednesday 08:00 00:00
Thursday 08:00 00:00
Friday 08:00 00:00
Saturday 08:00 00:00
Sunday 08:00 00:00

New Years eve into new years day hours to be extended to 0800

The opening hours of the premises

Page 135




[Day Start Time End Time
IMonday 08:00 01:00
[Tuesday 08:00 01:00
Wednesday 08:00 01:00
Thursday 08:00 01:00
[Friday 08:00 01:00
Saiurday 08:00 01:00
Sunday 08:00 01:00
New years eve into new years day hours to be extended to 0800 (24hrs)

Where the licence autharises supplies of alcohal whether these are on and/or off supplies

For consumption on and off the premises

Part 2

Name, {registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of the premises licence

Mr Hashem Beik Mohammadi
11, Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, London, Brent, NW6 6HT

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply
of alcohol

cHashem Beik Mohammadi _

Personal licence number and issuing authority of persenal licence held by designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Licence Number: BT
Issuing authority: &

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

No Irresponsible Drinks Promotions

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises da not carry out, arrange or participate in any
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
Page 136




(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially similar
activities, carried on for the purpose of encauraging the sale or supply of alcohal for consumption on the premises—

1. {a)games or other activities which require or encourage,

or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to— (i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible persen is authorised to
sell or supply alcohol), or {if} drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohd! free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to & group
defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discaunted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or fess in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a
licensing objective;

(d} selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which
can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another {other than where that other person is unable to
drink without assistance by reason of disability).

Free Water

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers whete 1t is reasonably
available.

Age Verification Policy

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in
respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the
nremises is carried on in accordance with the age vetification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear lo the responsible persen to be under 18 years of age (or such older age
as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b} an ultraviolet feature.

Small Measures to be Available

The responsible person must ensure that—

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcohalic
drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container} it is
available o customers in the following measures—

(i) beer or cider: V2 pint;
(i) gin, rum, vadka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is availabte to customers on the
premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the guantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is
rmade aware that these measures are available

Minimum Price of Alcohol

Page 137




1.A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which
is less than the permitted price.

2.For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—

(a)—duty| is to be consirued in accardance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b)—permitted price] is the price found by applying the formuta—

P=D+(DxV)

where—

()P is the permitted price,

(iD is the amount of duty chargeabile in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply
of the alcohol, and

(IV s the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date
of the sale or supply of the alcohol,

(c)—relevant person|| means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence—
{(iithe holder of the premises licence,
(ilthe designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(lli}the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) —trelevant person|| means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificate,
any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the
supply in question; and

(e)—valued added tax| means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994,

3.Where the parmitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would {apart from this paragraph) not be a whole
numbper of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-
paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4.(1) Sub-paragraph (2} applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b} of paragraph 2 on a day (—the first
day|} would be different from the permitted price on the next day (—ihe second day]|) as a result of a change to the rat e of
duty or value added tax.

(2)The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the
expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day,

Reguirement for a DPS

(1} No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-

(a)at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b)at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or their personal licence is
suspended,

(2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal
flicence.

Door Supervisors and Security Staff to be Licensed by the SIA {(when required)

Page 138




\Whers the licence includes a condition that at specified times cne or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a
security activity, each individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority, with the following exceptions:

a) premises where the premises licence authorises plays or films

b) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001 (premises
being used exclusively by a club with a club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising plays or films
or under a gaming licence), or

c) any occasion within paragraph 8(3){(d) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001
Film Classification When required

(i} The admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be restricted in accordance with the recommendation of the
designated film clagsification body unless section (ii) applies.

(i) Where the licensing authority notifies the holder of the licence that this subsection applies the admission of children must
be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority.

In this section-
"children" means persons aged under 18; and
"film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority

under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c. 39) {authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

1 Doar supervisors shall wear clothing that can be clearly and easily identified on CCTV,

2 Door supervisors of a sufficient number and gender mix, shall be employed from 21:00 hours on any day when the
nremises are open for the sale of alcohol with music either live or recorded and the facilities for dance or the performance of
dance past midnight.

3 Aregisler/log containing the names, badge number, dates & times of duty of security staff and any incidents that occur
shall be kept and made avallable to the Police and Licensing Authority.

4 CCTV shall be installed to Home Office Guidance standards and maintained in a good working condition and recordings
shall be kept for 31 days and shalt be made available to police and licensing officers if requested.

5 A CCTV camera shall be installed to cover the entrance of the premises.

Page 139




6 Customers shall not be permitied to take open glass containers outside the premises as defined on the plan submitled
to and approved by the Licensing Authority.

7 Customers shall not be permitted to take open containers of alcohol off the premises.

8 The total number of people permitted on the premises including staff and performers shall not exceed 200.

9 A "Challenge 21" policy shali be adopted and adhered to.

10 A refusal book shall be kept and maintained.

11 The licensee shall keep an incident book which shall be made available to the Police and Licensing Authority.

12 No alcohol shall be available for any customer when the premises are open for primarily for use by parsons under the
age of 18.

13 A copy of the premises licence summary including the hours which licensable activities are permitted shall be visible
from the outside of each entrance to the premises.

14 A suitable intruder alarm complete with panic button shall be fitted and maintained.

15 No entry or re-entry shall be permitted afier 24:00 hours.

16 Notices requesting customers to leave quietly shall be displayed at each exit.

17 Notices advertising the number of a local licensed taxi service shall be displayed in a prominent position.

18 Facilities within the premises shall be made available for customers o await taxis.

19 The locks and flush latches on the exit doors and gates shall be unlocked and kept free from fastenings other than
push bars and pads whilst the public are on the premises,

20 The socket outlets (or other power supplies used for DJ equipment, band equipment and other partable equipment)
that are accessible to performers, staff or the public shall be suitably protected by a residual current device (RGD) having a
rated residual operating current not exceeding 30 milliamps.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Page 140



Annex 4 — Plans

See attached

Page 141




Page 142




00l : 1
WJ 010204450
W Jooy punoig

i3, voria mva

NIHOLI OL HOLVH 3DIAN3S

E\\\\\\.\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\._’: .\\\\\\.\\ \\\\\\\\.\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\1\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\L\\.\
> 3
Q ~
0 o
m —
7)) g
7] 0]
l = r G
@] } C
) 1 O
> ]
H q S
m H
4 i Mvg

! Sdlvls i

\N\\\\\\\\\\- V-, Wy

LI T T T 7T \\\\\\1\\\\\\\\.\.\\\\\\‘\.\\\ \.\\\\\\\\.\\s\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\1\\.\

-
S13nol

A
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

1H9 9MN

NOGNOT

QVO¥ HOIH NYNgTIM
3001y8 NINg M L)
A2idE mvy

€002 LOY ONISNIOM

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Application for by Esther Chan - Licensing Enforcement Officer for the premises known as Shanzelize, 11 Kilburn Bridge, Kilburn High Road, NW6 6HT, pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
	3.2 Shanzelize - Application
	3.3 Shanzelize - Appendix 1-10
	3.4 Shanzelize - Appendix 11-20
	3.5 Shanzelize - Appendix 21-30
	3.5 Shanzelize - Appendix 31-40
	3.6 Shanzelize - Appendix 41-44
	3.7 Shanzelize - Police Rep
	3.8 Shanzelize - Nuisance Control Reps
	3.9 Shanzelize - Public Safety Rep
	3.10 Shanzelize - EHO Rep
	3.11 Shanzelize - EHO Warning Letter
	3.12 Shanzelize - Planning rep
	3.13 Appendix 45 - Customers in Rear Seating Area
	3.14 Appendix 46 - Musician Playing Keyboard in Rear Seating Area
	3.15 Appendix 47 - Male SIA Staff Seated in Licensed Area
	3.16 Witness Statement Esther Chan 17.02.2022
	3.17 Police photos
	3.18 Shanzelize - Letter in Support of Premises
	3.19 Shanzelize - Resident Rep 1
	3.20 Shanzelize - Resident Rep 2
	3.21 Shanzelize - Resident Rep 3
	3.22 Shanzelize - Current Licence
	3.23 Shanzelize Plan
	3.24 Shanzelize - OS Map




